
 

 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda.  Under the Brown Act, Council is 

prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred to staff or to a 

subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which may not be 

delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council action.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
Persons wishing to speak on any item on the agenda will be called at the time the agenda item is brought 

forward.  Persons wishing to speak on closed session items have a choice of doing so either immediately 

prior to the closed session or at the time for comments on items at the open session. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
Time shall be devoted to audience participation early on the agenda.  If additional time is needed, the 

Mayor will allow for same at the end of the agenda. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL                             

  

Mayor Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem Goss, Council Member 

Arizmendi, Council Member Delmar, and Council Member 

Harabedian 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT                                                  Regarding Closed Session Items 

 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION REGARDING: 

 

 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL:  INITIATION OF LITIGATION 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) 

Number of potential cases:  One 

AGENDA  

REGULAR MEETING 

SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY,  AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 

Tuesday, June 9, 2015 

 

5:30 pm Closed Session 

6:30 pm Open Session 

 

City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

Sierra Madre,  California  91024 

 

 John Capoccia, Mayor  

Gene Goss, Mayor Pro Tem 

Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member 

Denise Delmar, Council Member 

John Harabedian, Council Member 

 

Nancy Shollenberger, City Clerk  

Richard Mays, City Treasurer 

1



 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL 

Pursuant to Calif. Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) – Pending Litigation 

The City Council/Agency finds, based on advice from legal counsel, that discussion in open session will prejudice 

the position of the local agency in the litigation. 

 

Case Name: In re Petition of City of Sierra Madre Challenging 2012 Los Angeles Municipal Separate Storm Sewer 

System Permit (Order No. R4-2012-0175) 

 

Case Number: State Water Resources Control Board/Office of Chief Counsel Files A-2236(a) through (kk) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OPEN  SESSION 

 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
 Mayor John Capoccia, Mayor Pro Tem Gene Goss, 

Council Members Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar, 

and John Harabedian 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  AND 

INVOCATION/INSPIRATION 
 

 Mayor John Capoccia 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION  

 

 City Attorney report from the closed session. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  Vote of the Council to proceed with City business. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES  Approval of minutes from the Regular City Council 

meeting on May 26, 2015. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  Reports of individual Council Member activities relating 

to City business. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT  Regarding items not on the Agenda. 

 

PRESENTATION  Update from Public Works Director Bruce Inman 

regarding water conservation 

 

 

 

 

 
2



ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. CONSENT  
 

  

 a) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 15-31 OF 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN 

DEMANDS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 15-31 for approval of payment of 

City Warrants in aggregate amount of 

$361,596.77; Library warrants in the aggregate 

amount of $12,541.01, and payroll transfer in the 

aggregate amount of $364,683.87 for fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2015. 

 

 b) RESOLUTION 15-29: ADOPTION OF MID-

YEAR BUDGET UPDATE FY 2014-2015 

 

RESOLUTION 15-30: ADOPTION OF 

COMMITTED GENERAL FUND 

BALANCES FOR FYE 2015 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 15-29 adopting the Fiscal Year 

2014/2015 Mid-Year Budget and appropriating 

the amounts projected; and Resolution 15-30, 

adopting Committed Fund Balances for Fiscal 

Year Ending June 30, 2015. 

 

 c) RECOMMENDATION TO REJECT 

PROPOSALS FOR LIBRARY FACILITY 

CONDITION ASSESSMENT AND RE-

ADVERTISE THE PROJECT FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROPOSALS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council direct 

staff to reject current RFP bids for a Library 

Facility Condition Assessment and authorize 

staff to re-bid the project. 

 

 d) CANCELLATION OF BOTH AUGUST 2015 

CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

the cancellation of both regular City Council 

meetings in August and direct staff to pay all 

necessary expenses during that time. 

 

 e) RESOLUTION 15-32 GRANTING 

TEMPORARY USE PERMIT 15-05 FOR 

HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE 

ROUND-UP EVENT 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council adopt 

Resolution 15-32 approving Temporary Use 

Permit 15-05 for a Household Hazardous Waste 

Round-Up on August 15, 2015. 

 

 f) APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 15-27 FOR 

THE AMENDED AND RESTATED 

VERDUGO FIRE COMMUNICATIONS 

SERVICE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

CITIES OF BURBANK, GLENDALE, 

PASADENA, AND SIERRA MADRE 

 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 15-27 and authorize the City 

Manager to execute the documents on behalf of 

the City of Sierra Madre. 

 

 PUBLIC  HEARINGS 

 

  

2. FISCAL YEAR 2015/2016 ASSESSMENT 

DISTRICTS – PUBLIC HEARING AND 

RESOLUTION OF CONFIRMATION 15-24 AND 

RESOLUTION 15-33 SETTING ASSESSMENT 

RATES FOR AD VALOREM MAINTENANCE 

DISTRICTS 1, 3A, AND 3B 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council hold a 

public hearing and adopt Resolution 15-24 

confirming the levy of assessments for Districts 

3 and 5, Community Facilities District No. 1, E. 

Miramonte Sewer District, and E. Bonita Sewer 

District for Fiscal Year 2015/2016, and 

approving the City Engineer’s Report for 

2015/2016; and adopt Resolution 15-33 setting 

tax rates for Ad Valorem Districts No. 1, 3A, 

and 3B. 

 

3



3. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 14-07 AND 

VARIANCE 15-01 – REQUEST TO ALLOW 

VERIZON WIRELESS TO INSTALL A NEW 

WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY 

ALONG THE EAST SIDE OF THE PUBLIC 

RIGHT-OF-WAY ON OAK MEADOW ROAD AND 

230 NORTH OF EAST ORANGE GROVE AVENUE 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council hold a 

public hearing and approve Conditional Use 

Permit 14-07 and Variance 15-01 pursuant to 

City Council Resolution 15-28 and the exhibits 

provided by staff. 

 

 ITEMS  FOR  DISCUSSION 

 

  

4. CONSIDERATION OF ALTERNATE SCHEDULE 

FOR TESTING AND USE OF THE EMERGENCY 

HORN 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council provide 

staff with direction. 

 

5. FISCAL YEAR 2015-2017 BUDGET REDUCTION 

ALTERNATIVES; CONTRACTING AND SERVICE 

LEVEL REDUCTIONS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council provide 

staff with direction. 

 

 

 

4



PUBLIC COMMENT 

Council is prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred 

to staff or to a subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which 

may not be delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by Council action.   

 

ACTION ITEMS 

Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such matters, 

including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

The appellant and/or applicant will each be provided a total of ten (10) minutes to address their item.  

A portion of their allotted time may be reserved for rebuttal or a summary conclusion at the close of 

public comment.  All other speakers will be limited to a total of three continuous minutes, which 

cannot be delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council 

action. 

 

AVAILABILITY OF AGENDA MATERIALS 

Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection on the City’s website at 

www.cityofsierramadre.com, and during normal business hours at City Hall, 232 W. Sierra Madre 

Blvd. and at the Sierra Madre Public Library, 440 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

 

LIVE BROADCASTS 

Regular City Council meetings are broadcasted live on Cable Channel 3 and rebroadcast on 

Wednesday and Saturday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

MEETING ASSISTANCE 

If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Manager’s office at 

(626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council will adjourn to a Regular Meeting at this same place on Tuesday, June 23, 2015. 

5

http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/


Agenda 
Regular Meeting of the Sierra Madre City Council, 
Successor Agency, and Public Finance Authority 

Tuesday, May 26, 2015 
5:30 p.m. Closed Session; 6:30 p.m. Open Session 

City Hall Council Chambers, 232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

  
Mayor, John Capoccia, opened the Regular Meeting of the Sierra Madre City Council, Successor Agency, and Public Finance 
Authority, at 5:30 p.m.  The Mayor asked for public input and there was none so the Mayor immediately adjourned to a 
Closed Session.  The City Council returned from Closed Session at 6:34 p.m. and the Mayor opened the Open Session at 6:36 
p.m.  City Clerk, Nancy Sue Shollenberger, read the roll, noting that all City Council Members were present. 
 
CALL TO ORDER/.ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
 
Present:   John Capoccia, Mayor, Gene Goss, Mayor Pro Tem, Council Members 
   Rachelle Arizmendi, Denise Delmar and John Harabedian 
 
Absent:   None 
 
Also Present:  Elaine Aguilar, City Manager 
   Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney 
   Bruce Inman, Director of Public Works 
   Elisa Cox, Assistant City Manager 
   Carolyn Thomas, Director of Library Services 
   James Carlson, Management Analyst 
   Steve Heydorff, Fire Chief 
   Larry Giannone, Public Safety Officer and Police Chief 
   Nancy Sue Shollenberger, City Clerk 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION/INSPIRATION: 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, led the Pledge of Allegiance and followed with a Memorial prayer: 
 
 Heavenly Father, 

On this Memorial Day, we pray for those who courageously laid down their lives for the cause of freedom.  May the 
examples of their sacrifice inspire us the selfless love of Your Son, our Lord, Jesus Christ.  Bless all families of our 
fallen troops, and fill their homes and their lives with your strength and peace.  In union with people of goodwill of 
every nation, embolden us to answer the call to work for peace and justice, and thus, seek an end to violence and 
conflict around the globe.  We ask this through Christ our Lord.  Amen. 

 
REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION: 
 
Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney, reported that the City Council met in Closed Session this evening to discuss the following: 
 
Conference with Labor Negotiator 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957.6 
City Negotiators:  Elaine Aguilar, City Manager, Elisa Cox, Assistant City Manager, and Marcie Medina, Finance Director. 
Employee Organization:  Police Organization 
 
The City Attorney reported that the City Council gave direction to Labor Negotiator. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY    Page 2 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
Conference with Legal Counsel 
Pursuant to California Government code Section 54956.99(d)(1) –Pending Litigation 
The City Council/Agency finds, based on advice from legal counsel that discussion in open session will prejudice the position 
of the local agency in the litigation. 
Case Name:  In re Petition of City of Sierra Madre Challenging 2012 Los Angeles Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System 
Permit (Order No. R4-2012-0175) 
Case Number:  State Water Resources Control Board/Office of Chief Counsel Files A-2236(a) through (kk). 
 
The City Attorney reported that the City Council gave direction, but no action was taken. 
 
Conference with Legal Counsel 
Pursuant to California Government code Section 54956.9(d)(3) 
The City Council/Agency finds, based on advice from legal counsel, that discussion in open session will prejudice the position 
of the local agency in the litigation. 
Anticipated Litigation: 
Receipt of Memo from City Attorney Highsmith regarding threat of litigation received from Julie Tschida Brown on February 
27, 2015 (Memo available for inspection in City Manager’s Office). 
 
The City Attorney reported that the City Council was unable to review this item due to the lack of time, so this item will be 
reviewed after the Open Session. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian moved and it was seconded by Council Member, Denise Delmar for approval of the 
Agenda as presented.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING ON MAY 12, 2015: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss moved and it was seconded by Council Member, John Harabedian, for approval of the May 12, 
2015 City Council Meeting with the minor change made by Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi.  The motion passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi made the following change to the Minutes of May 12, 2015: 
 
Page 3 of 17 under Mayor and City Council Reports, No. 4 – first line. Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, did not attend the 
Older American Reception for Ms. Cooper.  Delete:  She was happy to be there.  Balance of sentence is okay. 
 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS: 
 

1) Council Member, John Harabedian, did not have a report. 
 

2) Council Member, Denise Delmar, announced that the City Council had three community input meetings.  Tomorrow 
is the Webinar.  She noted that it was very nice to hear from everyone who expressed themselves.  The community’s 
input is important. 

 

 

 

7



 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 3 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 

3) Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi reported on the following: 
 

a. Attended meeting with Public Education group, which involved cities of Pasadena, Altadena and Sierra 
Madre.  The corporate world needs to get involved. 

b. Yesterday, the VFW Post held the Annual Memorial Day Celebration at the Sierra Madre Cemetery.  Judy 
Chu attended.  She thanked the VFW for this special event. 

c. The Volunteer Breakfast that the staff held was successful.  Thank you for this recognition. 
d. The Mt. Wilson Trail Race was a very successful event, and she was proud to say that her husband came in 

the top 3
rd

 – she is very proud of him.  She thanked all the volunteers for their help. 
 

4) Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, participated in two of the community input meetings.  He complimented Council 
Member Delmar for her efforts on behalf of the City Council.  We got good information.  The Mt. Wilson Trail Race 
was great and he thanked Pete Siberell and the volunteers. 
 

5) Mayor, John Capoccia, also congratulated all the runners at the Mt. Wilson Trail Race, and a special thanks to all the 
volunteers.  The Mayor noted that he has received many e-mails regarding the budget.  Thank you everyone for your 
input.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Richard Proctor, Member, Library Board of Trustees 
 

Mr. Procter wanted to update everyone on what the Library is doing.  The “Read to Rhythm” at Library is great.  It is 
a lot of fun for everyone.  He continued with events being held at the Library.  Call the Library for information on 
these activities. 

 
Leslie Ziff, V.P. Historical Society, Education Chair 
 

Mrs. Ziff was present this evening to announce the Chicken & Ravioli Dinner to be held at Lizzie’s on Saturday, June 
27, at 5:00 p.m.  Tickets are $30.00.  Several businesses in town have tickets.  Visit Richardson House, there will be 
pottery exhibit, plus more.  Lizzie will be there. 

  
Janet Emery 
 

Ms. Emery had many letters from students expressing their desire that the Library stay open.  The students are 
passionate about the Library saying open. 

 
Mayor, John Capoccia, closed public input. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 4 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 

1) CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Elaine Aguilar, City Manager, gave the following report under the Consent Calendar: 
 
1a). WARRANTS 
 

Staff is recommending approval of Resolution No. 15-26 “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS” and approval for payment of City Warrants in the 
aggregate amount of $176,445.77; Sierra Madre Library Warrants in aggregate amount of $7,265.84 and 
Payroll Transfer in the aggregate amount of $326,777.64 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 
 

 1b). EXTENSION OF PLANNING CONTRACT WITH PACIFIC MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS 
 

Staff recommends the City Council extend the Professional Services Agreement with Pacific Municipal 
Consultants (PMC) for planning staffing in conjunction with the projects at One Carter/Stonegate.  The 
terms of the Professional Services Agreement with PMC will expire on May 30, 2015 unless extended by 
written agreement of the parties.  The original agreement was for $40,000, which is nearly expended.  Staff 
is recommending the agreement be extended through December 31, 2015 for another $40,000. 

 
Staff recommends the City Council extend the Professional Services Agreement with Pacific Municipal 
Consultants for an additional $40,000. 

 
 

1c). CITY COUNCIL APPOINTMENT TO COLLABORATE PASADENA LEADERSHIP COUNCIL 
 
 The Pasadena Unified School District and the City of Pasadena are working in conjunction to develop a 

shared vision and framework to improve outcomes for children, youth, and families in the area.  The 
framework called Collaborate PASadena, grew out of a school/city/community work plan and has been 
further refined by an Ad Hoc Committee consisting of Council Members and PUSD Board Members.  One of 
the cornerstones of Collaborate PASadena is a Leadership Council comprised of elected representatives 
from Pasadena, Altadena, and Sierra Madre along with representatives from the community, local 
businesses, parents, and student leaders. 

 
 
 At a previous Council meeting, Mayor Capoccia was appointed to serve as the City’s delegate for 

Collaborate Pasadena Leadership Council.  At the May 12, 2015 meeting, the Mayor appointed, and the City 
Council approved, liaisons to various commissions, committees, and boards. 

 
 It is recommended that Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi be appointed the City’s designee, in 

acknowledgement of her appointment as the  
City’s liaison to Sierra Madre Elementary School at the May 12, 2015 City Council Meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 5 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
 

 It is recommended that Council Member Arizmendi be appointed as representative to serve on the 
Collaborate PASadena Leadership Council. 

 
1d). CITY HALL LANDSCAPING PROJECT UPDATE 

 
In September 2014, the City Council approved the design concept for the City Hall Landscaping project and 
directed the Committee to continue with the project and fundraising for the improvements.  To date, 
approximately $30,000 of the $50,000  of the project has been secured.  With the plans nearly complete, 
the committee anticipates beginning the demolition and grading phases of the project in late June and the 
planting phase in November. 

 
This joint community project between the City of Sierra Madre and the Sierra Madre Garden Club exists to 
accomplish the following goals: 

 

 Reduce the City’s water consumption; 

 Encourage water conservation; 

 Educate Sierra Madre citizens on the economic and ecological benefits of native plant gardens 
through: 

 Workshops corresponding with the planting progress at City Hall, 

 Ongoing transformation tutorials, and 

 By setting an example of grass removal and installation of alternative landscaping. 
 

FormLA, the landscape design company donating its services for this project, has completed the grading, 
drainage and irrigation plans for the redesigned landscaping outside of City Hall and the Public Safety 
building. 
 
Staff recommends the City Council receive and file this report. 

 
1e). 2015-2016 ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS – ENGINEER’S REPORT AND RESOLUTION OF INTENTION 15-23: 

 
The provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 require that the City Council conduct a public 
hearing to confirm assessments and to notify affected property owners.  In addition, Section 22566 of the 
California Streets and Highway Code requires the City Engineer to prepare a report of the City’s intention to 
levy assessments for the subsequent fiscal year. 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
1) Adopt Resolution No. 15-23 initiating assessment proceedings for Assessment Districts 3, 5, and CFD 

No. 1, for Fiscal Year 2015-2016, and directing the City Engineer to prepare and file an Engineer’s 
Report; and 

2) Set the Public Hearing on said assessments for June 9, 2015. 
 
Direct Assessment Districts: Central Business district Landscaping Maintenance 
    District No. 3 
    Central Business Parking District – District No. 5 
    Community Facilities District No. 1, Carter 1 

 
 
 

10



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 6 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
 

Staff is recommending approval of Resolution No. 15-23 “A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE, INITIATING PROCEEDINGS FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF 
ASSESSMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH DISTRICT NO. 3, CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT LANDSCAPE 
MAINTENANCE, DISTRICT NO. 5, CENTRAL BUSINESS PARKING DISTRICT, COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 1, E.MIRAMONTE SEWER ASSESSMENT DISTRICT, AND E BONITA SEWER ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016, ORDERING THE PREPARING OF THE ENGINEER’S REPORT, AND SETTING JUNE 9, 
2015 AS THE DATE FOR A PUBIC HEARING ON THE MATTER”. 

 
 1f). RECOMMENDATION FOR UPDATED INTEGRATED LIBRARY SYSTEM (ILS) 
 

City Council approved the solicitation of bids for an updated ILS system at the February 10, 2015 Council 
meeting.  Seven proposals were received and three vendors were invited to present their ILS solution to a 
review committee comprised of staff and the Chair of the Trustees. At the May 4, 2015 Special Library 
Board Meeting, the Trustees unanimously recommended Biblionix as the best solution for updating the 
Library’s ILS. 

 
Staff recommends that Council approve an Award of Contract for first year of service to Biblionix, LLC not to 
exceed $17,000. For FY 2015-2016.  FY 2016-2017 would be $8,040, and FY 2017-2018 would be $8,040. 

 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, remarked that the Library ILS System is cheaper than what the City has presently. 
 
Carolyn Thomas, Director of the Library, noted that the Annual Maintenance is $25,000.  The Server is at the end of its life.  
To replace Server and Maintenance is $43,000.  Biblionix is half the cost. 
 
Council Member Delmar questioned the Consultant fee in the warrants.  Is it just 1 Carter? 
 
The City Manager said, “Primarily 1 Carter”. 
 
Mayor Capoccia asked if Item 1b fee of $40,000 is recoverable? 
 
The City Manager said at least $38,000.  There may be something we need them to do additionally. 
 
Mayor Capoccia opened for public input on Consent Calendar. 
 
Barry Gold, Ramona 
 

Mr. Gold remarked that Item 1f – in passing this is good and a better system.  You have a budget item later regarding 
cost savings.  You will be discussing contracting out the Library.  They may want to put in their own system.  Do you 
need to add a statement if you contract out. 

 
Mayor Capoccia closed public input. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 7 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
 
Mayor Capoccia asked staff if a decision is made to contract out the Library, is it economical to proceed?  When will we incur 
the cost? 
 
The City Manager said that it is still economical to proceed. 
 
Carolyn Thomas, Director of the Library. 
 

Ms. Thomas remarked that if we go ahead and approve the ILS system and we contract out – it is still a cost saving 
measure.  If server crashes, we will have a big expense.  $17,000 is a new system for whatever length of time.  It is 
easy to use and staff can manipulate.  It would be costly to stay where we are. 

 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi moved and it was seconded by Council Member, John Harabedian, for approval of the 
Consent Calendar with the change of date made by the City Manager.  The motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
2). FISCAL YEAR 2015-2017 BUDGET REDUCTION ALTERNATIVES; CONTRACTING AND SERVICE LEVEL REDUCTIONS: 
 
 Elaine Aguilar, City Manager, gave the staff report. 
 
 At the May 12

th
 meeting, the Council directed staff to return with: 

 
A. Alternative Budget reduction options by Department. 
B. Proposals to Contract City Services 
 
The Council requested this information to discuss resolving the projected General Fund deficit going into Fiscal Year 
23015-2016.  The projected General Fund deficit for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 is $762,000, and for Fiscal Year 2016-
2017, the projected deficit is $1,005,000. 
 
A total of between $400,000 and $1.3M in budget reductions has been identified.  The details of the associated 
service level reductions are summarized in the attachments in the Agenda.  These reductions do not involve 
contracting or outsourcing any City services.  Preliminary contracting estimates were received from Police Services, 
Library Services, Fire Suppression and Medical/Paramedic, Planning, Animal Control, and Recreation Services.  The 
preliminary (not yet fully analyzed), potential savings from contracting services range from $0 (no cost savings, or 
perhaps a cost increase), to more than $1M. 
 
City’s new fiscal year begins on July 1

st
 and ends on the following June 30

th
.  The City Council has reviewed all major 

cost components of the City’s General Fund and Restricted Fund budgets for the next two fiscal years.  For a number 
of reasons, such as increasing costs, increased state mandates, and the reduction in the City’s Utility Users Tax, the 
City’s General Fund budget is projected to have deficits ranging from $762,000 to $1,005,000. 
 
The City Manager reviewed budget reductions and listed Level 1 through Level 3 reductions in each department.  
This report is available for anyone who wishes to review it at City Hall. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



 
 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 8 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
 
 

With regard to contracting out services – staff is presenting brief summaries of the contracting alternatives.  There is 
no in-depth analysis, no cost comparisons (in-hours vs. contract) nor are the “pros and cons” provided at this time.  
The Council had indicated that Council subcommittees would be formed to evaluate the selected proposals. 

 
Other Options were: 
 

 Furloughs 

 Delaying implementation of previous financial directive 

 Increased Fines and Fees 
 

Next Steps include Strategic Plan, and Town Hall Meeting. 
 
Alternatives: 
 
The City Council has the following options: 
 
1. The City Council could provide direction regarding the implementation of any of the budget reduction options. 
2. The City Council could provide direction regarding the implementation of any of the contracting proposals. 
3. The Council could request additional information regarding the Budget Reduction or Contracting options. 
4. The Council could provide direction regarding which options to include in the FY 2015-2016 and 2016-2017 

budget, and direct staff to return with a Proposed Budget for Council consideration. 
 
It is recommended that the City Council provide staff with direction. 

 
Council Member, John Harabedian, questioned the Level 2 Police Department.  It would reduce special events.  Could we 
bring in private security?  With regard to Planning Department, fees of $25,000-$50,000 – could we get more? 
 
The City Manager said it could be higher, based on current activity. 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, asked how the staff’s time was monitored? 
 
The City Manager noted that they are monitored when they clock in, by department. 
 
Council Member Delmar asked if the Police can’t staff the special events, can we use volunteers? 
 
The City Manager said that volunteers could be used for some things. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, questioned why we don’t see higher cuts in the Police Department. 
 
The City Manager said that if you have too few for patrolling, overtime costs go up.  The community wouldn’t want the Police 
Department to close down. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



 
 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 9 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Goss asked what do we have now? 
 
The City Manager stated that it can’t be made public – they fluctuate. 
 
Mayor, John Capoccia noted that we need a lot more detail on eliminations. 
 
The City Manager asked the Public Safety Director to speak. 
 
Larry Giannone, Public Safety Director and Police Chief. 
 

Mr. Giannone remarked that on Level 3 – we would pull a detective to go out on patrol.  We have to provide safety 
for officers.  We need to look at fatigue factor.  If we lose one personnel, it takes a year to train.  If there was a 
shooting and we needed to go outside the City and Court -  there are reports to do.  It takes time for an officer to 
write reports. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, remarked that contracting with the Sheriff’s Department – a Special Assignment Person, would 
come out of Temple City. 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian questioned staffing figures.  What control of costs will we have? 
 
The City Manager said you would need to look at more than one year – the first year is more expensive.  The Sheriff’s 
Department employees get increases at approximately 3% a year. 
 
Mr. Giannone remarked that San Dimas reduced their staff.  Some cities that went with Sheriff could not go back, it could not 
be accomplished. 
 
Council Member Delmar noted that she appreciates all the work that went into this.  I am good for June 6

th
 Town Hall Forum.  

There will be great gifts given out at the Town Hall Forum. 
 
Mayor Capoccia noted that June 6

th
, we should balance the budget. 

 
Mayor Capoccia opened for public comment. 
 
Mr. Richard Proctor 
 

Mr. Proctor wanted to acknowledge the City Council for taking on this naughty task.  In 1993 the citizens approved a 
6% UUT.  In 2008 the City went from 6% to 12% with Advisory Measure.  An Oversight Committee was appointed to 
oversee that the funds were being spent correctly.  For years the Library budget did not increase.  When you look at 
this, the Library is an essential part of why people stay in Sierra Madre.  The Library is an essential part of the 
community.  If you contract out Police, it will be difficult to get back.  The Library is the same.  The staff knows the 
residents.  My daughter gained by going to the Library.  I emphasize, “Hold onto the Library”. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 10 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
 
Officer Gonzales, Sierra Madre Police Department 
 

Officer Gonzales remarked that he is speaking on behalf of the Sierra Madre Police Association.  Talk to the 
community before you hold discussions with the Sheriff’s Department.  You get what you pay for.  Our record, our 
response time, outdoes anything the Sheriff’s Department has to offer.  We’re there immediately.  The Sheriff’s 
personnel will be shared.  We protect the City.  We are considered as family.  Paramedic’s is the same way.  Without 
Paramedics, you could lose lives, please consider.  You will lose so many valuable things that we do.  The Police 
Department and Fire Department want services kept here.  Keep community safe. 

 
Barry Ziff, Trustee, Library Board of Trustees 
 

Mr. Ziff asked that the community be included in the discussions about contracting out.  Have a representative from 
each group in the City.  All parties involved should be included in the discussions. 

 
Gary Hood 
 

Mr. Hood remarked that he wishes it was exciting to speak at the City Council Meeting, but he can’t say that.  If we 
had a Safety Commission we wouldn’t need to be here.  I will put my comments in writing before June 6

th
.  We have 

Paramedics for $9.00/Hr.  The Private Ambulance is $15.00/Hr.  With regard to the Fire Department and Levels 1, 2 
and 3 – we can’t cut anymore.  Why wouldn’t the Police Department consider the County?  These guys put their lives 
on the line.  We have the finest graduates and volunteers are free - $1.00/day.  I am really disappointed in the 
information in this report.  There is misinformation.  There are misunderstandings.  Why aren’t we getting County 
services now?  The Fire Department needs more equipment.   They have always done their job with the money they 
get.  How many personnel did the City have 20 years ago compared to now?  I would like to see a citywide 
questionnaire -  do a peer review with no names on it. 

 
Marilyn Diaz, Toyon Rd. 
 

Ms. Diaz wanted to address proposed cuts.  She remarked that she is working as a consultant now.  I can tell you the 
Police Department is working at bare bones level.  With regard to the Fire Department, we are fortunate to have 
volunteers from the Police and Fire.  We have effective response time.  I concur with everything the Library Trustee 
said.  I agree with all special events.  The more I travel, Sierra Madre is unique.  Public Works is a challenge and 
personnel work hard.  They all do.  We need to pursue ways to bring in revenue.  Council Member’s Arizmendi and 
Delmar made presentations.  I am willing to pay a higher UUT tax. 

 
Pat Alcorn, E. Grand View 
 

Ms. Alcorn remarked that her mind is boggled.  I can’t speak for the Fire and Police, but I can speak on the Library 
and I did read the proposal.  I read it on Friday, but it was received in January.  Why’s didn’t we receive it in January?  
Levels 1, 2 and 3 in the Library – the Library has been cut.  I would be sad to lose the programs and grants we have 
received.  Level 1 loss is Baby Rhythm Time.  Community Services has two full time employees.  I don’t see how you 
can cut any programs.  Again, I agree with Marilyn Diaz, figure out how to bring in revenue and we have surplus 
funds.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

15



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 11 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
 
 
Debby Bamberger, Ramona 
 
 Ms. Bamberger asked what the surplus was in the City? 
 
The City Manager stated, $360,000. 
 
Ms. Bamberger asked if we projected this figure? 
 
Mayor Capoccia stated, No we didn’t. 
 
Ms. Bamberger noted that we have the surplus, and the $1.2M in committed funds.  It is available for rainy days.  We are 
dealing with this the wrong way.  We have a revenue problem.  The Strategic Plan talks about a meeting on July 28

th
 to 

discuss revenue enhancement.  We need to increase revenues.  The UUT needs to be in place.  I look forward to what you will 
do to increase revenues and use the funds you have. 
 
De Alcorn, E. Grand View 
 
 Honorable Mayor and Council Members 

I am concerned about the budget process that is taking place.  The budget shortfall has been known for some time.  
Yet within just the last few weeks the proposed cuts in the budget has been put together.  There are town hall 
meetings that are in progress.  But this budget has been formulated without any of the community input factored in, 
this all to be tied up with a neat ribbon in the next couple weeks.  This has all the appearance of a push up to say 
“we involved the community”.  It seems to me that more time was spent on deciding whether or not there should be 
a Conditional Use Permit or not for two stories.  The Budget shortfall wasn’t even meaningfully discussed in the last 
Strategic Plan discussion a few weeks ago.  The proposed cuts are such that we won’t have a “Sierra Madre”.  This 
puts me in mind of a person with severe diabetes.  First a toe is cut off.  Then a foot.  Then a leg, etc.  Until all that is 
left is a sort of torso.  It is true that the previous attempt at UUT increase was voted down by the people   There 
have been some things that have nullified some expectations, namely a decrease in the expected receipts as well as 
unfunded mandates from the state. A usual practice from the governor on down is to use scare tactics and threaten 
to shut down police, etc.  It is no surprise that people are skeptical now.  The apparent hurry up budget process 
further adds to that skepticism.  It is true, there are a vocal few in the community that feel that if the only streets 
they use are Mariposa, Hermosa, and the Boulevard that is all that should be maintained.  Or if THEY don’t use a 
certain service it really doesn’t need to be funded.  That is a small percentage of the people of Sierra Madre.  If 
people are properly given the facts without embellishment, they will respond.  They truly want their Sierra Madre 
and will answer the call, if they understand the dire state of the City finances.  Even at a 10% UUT rate the city is still 
underwater and with curtailed services.  As an example, many streets are in a really poor state, with their repair 
perhaps some time in the future.  Leaky roofs of city buildings are delayed in being repaired.  No city programs for 
the youth, given up for a fee to the YMCA.  These are some items that are indicators.  And the list goes on.  If indeed 
we do want OUR Sierra Madre I propose we have a 12% UUT that does not have a sunset clause.  The problem will 
not go away.  Do not make the draconian cuts until there is definitive declaration from the community. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 12 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
 
John Pinedo, Firefighter 
 

Mr. Pinedo remarked that in 1960 he was in medical service and retired in 2010.  I am a firefighter in Sierra Madre.  
The city needs to supply Police, Fire and Paramedic services, and advance life Paramedics.  Every Fire Department 
provides that service.  Your  
Fire Department is cost effective.  You won’t find a better deal than you have now.  EMS does not provide advanced 
Paramedic services.  EM care is not the right place to reduce services.  Preserve and protect the health of this 
community. 

 
Greg Christmas, Sierra Madre Firefighters Association 
 

Mr. Christmas remarked that he can assure you that you are getting the best that you can ask for.  These people are 
trained to the highest standards.    Once you lose services, you can’t get them back.  You can’t retain services with 
County of Los Angeles.  If you give up life support program you would not be able to get it back.  If County provides 
EMS, it will be lowest level of service.  I caution you on this.  The codes are ambiguous.  EMS is lowest level of 
service.  Thank you.  

 
Ed Delcoure, Police Department 
 

Mr. Delcoure remarked about the discussion of contracting out with Sheriff’s Department, if it saves money.  He 
gave examples of special services they provide to the community – if a resident calls for a leaky toilet, they respond, 
if a call comes in for a water heater leaking, they respond.  You won’t get this from the Sheriff’s Deputies.  Our 
Department responds far beyond on calls.  When you contract out, you will lose so much service that you won’t get 
back. 

 
Mayor, John Capoccia closed public input. 
 
Mayor Capoccia remarked that Mr. Hood questioned $1.00 a day for volunteers. 
 
The City Manager stated that volunteers come to Sierra Madre to get experience.    Continuing this in Sierra Madre will 
continue to get honorariums. 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, asked staff to explain the difference between Paramedic and Emergency Medical System. 
 
Greg Christmas noted that ALS is “Advanced Life Support”.  EMT Emergency Medical Technician can give very defined 
treatment, protocol and not much advanced.  They can transport to specialized centers.  EMT is handcuffed to transport to 
trauma centers, etc. 
 
Council Member Delmar noted that Paramedic is highest level of care. 
 
Mayor Capoccia asked about the training requirements? 
 
Mr. Christmas stated that EMT’s get 140-160 hours of training.  Paramedic 1,000 hours of advanced training. 
 
City Manager, Elaine Aguilar, remarked that with regard to Library proposal – I wanted to bring back all proposals at the same 
time.  You want to form committees.  There will be no contracting this evening.  We will do deeper analysis.  
 
 
 

17



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 13 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, questioned staff why aren’t we discussing revenue options? 
 
The City Manager said, “The City Council hasn’t directed me to do”. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated that he thought we talked about revenues and expenditures. 
 
 
The City Manager noted that the City Council has the goal to form committees. 
 
Council Member Delmar stated that she is not ready to implement anything tonight.  We need subcommittees to address 
revenues. 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian, stated that there is a lot here.  No-one wants anything to go.  The services we provide are 
important.  We work on a bare bones budget.  We don’t want to cut anything.  At this point, we are in tough spot to balance 
budget.  Revenues need to be on table.  What can we put on ballot?  Can we raise fines and fees?  We can get through this.  
Folks said they are in favor of UUT.  When I campaigned they didn’t want an increase in the UUT.  We have revenue problem.  
I don’t like contracting proposals.  Once you contract out, you are at the mercy of the County.  Future City Councils will 
wonder why we gave up services.  I don’t like Sheriff’s proposal or Library proposal.  We lose character and culture.  We will 
pay more and response times will be worse.  Why outsource?  I don’t think contracting out is great.  In April 2016, pass UUT 
or outsource services.  The last two cycles the residents didn’t feel it was real.  Now, next time on UUT extension we will lose 
something.  Level 1 reduction’s aren’t terrible.  I am okay to spend reserves to balance the 2016-2017 budget.  We need cuts 
too.  They are acceptable.  We have a surplus this year.  This was informative.  We need to make cuts and spend reserves.  
There was implications from e-mails, haven’t handled this problem.  We have discussed it constantly.  The first item we 
considered was the budget. 
 
Mayor Capoccia stated that we had nine meetings to discuss the budget. 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, stated that she was dreading this meeting and reading the Agenda.  We are in Sierra 
Madre because of the environment.  People are forthright on what they like about this City.  We need to find $762,000 
deficit.  I considered surplus, and it makes sense to roll in to lessen deficit.  I would look at Level 1 Community Services.    The 
Commission has a special place in my heart as I was on this Commission.  I am in favor of Level 1.  Level 1 cut’s gets us close to 
balancing the budget.  With regard to contracts – don’t love this idea – we need to form committees.  We need to get the 
right people on this committee. 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, stated that she agrees with what Council Member Arizmendi said and to a point what 
Council Member Harabedian said.  We needed to get out in the community.  There were a lot of scare tactics on UUT and 
sunset.  It has been postponed.  We need to make cuts.  Hearing from community – Budget, General Fund – residents want 
another revenue option.  I don’t like contracts, but we need committees.  Let’s start now. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 14 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated that he was moved by the testimony we all heard tonight and I want to see what we get at 
the June 6

th
 meeting.  At the last meeting there was reluctance at using reserves.  Perhaps it will get us to a point to discuss 

revenue increases.  We need subcommittees.  I want to be on the committee.  I campaigned for the UUT and was 
disappointed to see it failed.  That revenue is necessary.  We need to talk about contracts.  If UUT doesn’t pass, we still need 
to balance the budget.  It might involve contracting out some departments.  A year ago I stated I wanted local control.  The 
majority doesn’t want Sheriff’s.  I have respect for Sheriff Department.  They had serious issues.  I don’t see us contracting 
out Police and Library.  We have been dealt this hand.  If anyone has any doubts about revenues – and if you feel we haven’t 
carved out the budget to bare bones, please come June 6

th
 and let us discuss, let the truth come out.  We are not making any 

decisions tonight.  We could fund next year with the funds we have. 
 
Mayor, John Capoccia, stated that when looking at the Library and contracting out, we could save $100,000. 
 
City Manager, Elaine Aguilar, stated that because of overhead charges, not all cost allocations will go away – it will be a little 
less than $100,000. 
 
Mayor, John Capoccia, started with Police Department – I clearly won’t go with expensive option, next option is less than 
$400,000.  Police and Library save $600,000.  We haven’t evaluated these things.  The point is my conclusion – we still have a 
revenue problem.  Paramedics and Fire Department – we can’t get rid of them.  My opinion is that I am willing to cut very 
little.  It is prudent to use reserves.  How should we proceed? 
 
Council Member Arizmendi remarked that she is willing to use $400,000 of cuts in Level 1.  Nothing is ideal. We need $50,000 
from reserves. 
 
Council Member, Denise Delmar, remarked that it depends if we are actually prepared to trigger reductions.  If UUT doesn’t 
pass, could we use reserves and surplus? 
 
Mayor Capoccia asked, “How deep are you willing to dip into reserves?” 
 
Council Member Delmar said $500,000 to $600,000. 
 
Council Member, John Harabedian remarked about Level 1 cuts tonight.  The easy thing is spend reserves.  City Hall needs to 
be closed.  Community Services cuts, Fire Department I can live with and Library is okay.  Planning same thing – full cost 
recovery of fees will get more.  Police and Public Works – went through numbers – don’t like. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss stated that we have a revenue problem.  We need to put an item on the ballot.  Public won’t 
think we are serious – consider Level 1 cuts. 
 
Council Member Delmar stated, “Let’s not do anything tonight until the Town Hall Meeting on June 6

th
. 

 
Mayor Capoccia stated that what he is seeing is that we have three City Council members who are willing to make cuts and 
two are not willing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 15 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
 
 
Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi, stated that she really knows how important community meetings are and she wants to 
make sure the public gives input and we will take seriously.  With regard to Level 1 changes, we need to prepare for July 1

st
 

revenue strategies.  June 6
th

 – how long does it take to put UUT on ballot?  Parcel tax on ballot?  Whatever happens June 6
th

, 
we will consider all input.   We must take action now. 
 
Mayor Capoccia asked Council Member Arizmendi if she was willing to do Level 1 cuts? 
 
Council Member Arizmendi stated Yes, after June 6

th
, we will need cuts. 

 
Mayor Capoccia stated that three Council Members favor Level 1 cuts. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem, Gene Goss, stated that his view of this is if we do revenue measure we will restore cuts. 
 
Mayor Capoccia also noted that we could initiate a charge of $100.00 for Paramedic calls.  The Mayor asked staff when they 
need to receive direction on the budget – can you wait until June 6

th
? 

 
The City Manager stated that the City Council can give direction at the City Council Meeting on June 9

th
 for adoption on June 

26
th

. 
 
Council Member Delmar stated, “If we end up with revenue – it could all be restored.” 
 
Mayor, John Capoccia, remarked that what he hears from his constituents is they want deficit projected in the amount of 
$700,000 for next fiscal year.  We only need $400,000 in reserves to balance the budget. 
 
3). STATEGIC PLAN FROM MAY 6, 2015 
 
 Elaine Aguilar, City Manager, gave the staff report. 

 
Staff is requesting approval of the Strategic Plan’s Goals and Objectives as discussed at the May 6, 2015 Strategic 
Planning Retreat.  Ms. Aguilar continued with a slide presentation. 

 
Council Member, Denise Delmar moved and it was seconded by Council Member, Rachelle Arizmendi for approval of the 
Strategic Plan’s Goals and Objectives as discussed at the May 6, 2015 Strategic Planning Retreat.  The motion passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:   Staff will return with information on Fire, Police and Revenues. 
 
Mayor Capoccia opened for community input. 
 
John Pinedo wanted to suggest and encourage the City council to involve the public in discussions.  It will make for a more 
tolerable outcome. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20



 
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY   Page 16 of 16 
May 26, 2015 

 
 
 
The City Council recessed to a Closed Session at 9:10 p.m. to discuss the item they were unable to discuss before the City 
Council Meeting.  The City Council returned from Closed Session at 9:25 p.m. and the City Attorney reported that regarding a 
matter of anticipated litigation, the Council provided direction, but no action was taken.  The City Council adjourned at 9:25 
p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      John Capoccia, Mayor 
 
 
Minutes taken and typed by: 
 
 
 
Nancy Sue Shollenberger 
City Clerk 

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



ATTACHMENT 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

Request for Professional Services Proposal 

Library Facility Condition Assessment 

 

 

 

Sierra Madre Public Library 
 

 
 

City of Sierra Madre 

Sierra Madre Public Library 

Department of Public Works 

 

 

June 2015 

 

 
Carolyn Thomas 

Library Director 

49



ATTACHMENT 

 

2 

 

 

50



ATTACHMENT 

 

3 

 

The City of Sierra Madre 

The City of Sierra Madre (“City”), California was incorporated in 1907. The City is a general law city, 

governed by a City Council/City Manager form of government. The City Council is comprised of five 

members, selected through an at-large municipal election to serve a four-year term. The major 

operating departments of this full-service city are Administration, Community Services, Fire, Library 

Services, Planning & Community Preservation, Police, and Public Works, which has a Water Utility. 

Government services are primarily funded by property taxes, local taxes, and user fees. 

 

With a population of 11,094, the unique village is located in Los Angeles County at the base of the San 

Gabriel Valley Mountains. Sierra Madre is a residential community, proud of being the Village of the 

Foothills. Its small size and quiet neighborhoods lends itself to the small town atmosphere the 

residents are proud of maintaining. The local economy consists primarily of professional service 

providers and specialty retail shops and restaurants. 

 

The Sierra Madre Public Library 
The Sierra Madre Public Library is a single-branch library which serves residents of the community as 

well as neighboring cities.  The Library is open forty-seven hours per week, six days a week, including 

morning and evening hours. An average of 263 people visit the library daily, with an average of 6,581 

patron visits per month and an annual circulation of more than 80,000 materials.  Over 300 programs 

are offered yearly in the library for patrons of all ages ranging from infants to seniors.   Access to the 

internet is available through Wi-Fi and through public computers located in a small computer room.  

The library is a well-used and valued resource in our City. 

 

The existing Sierra Madre Public Library is 8,762 square feet, was built in 1955 and designed to hold 

25,000 items. Currently over 70,000 items are housed in the library and the basement, and many new 

technologies, unforeseen when the building was originally built, such as computers, Wi-Fi, DVDs, 

audio books, music cds, have been added to the collection. With the addition of the Local History 

Archives, the California Collection, Rare Books, and sharing the Basement area with the Friends of the 

Library, access to and storage of items is limited. In addition, the lack of a community room limits the 

ability to provide public programs and meeting space for the community. 
 

Objectives 

The Library Strategic Plan 2014-2017 set a goal to:  

 Provide a facility that is comfortable and welcoming, safe, energy efficient, accessible to all 

and well organized.   

 

Library Section of General Plan Draft 2014 recommends: 

 Upgrading, expanding or replacing the 1955 building for current and future public services, 

including space for community meetings and library programs, and storage for local history 

collection. 

Prior to any renovations or remodeling, it has been determined that an assessment of the condition of 

the current library facility be conducted with associated costs for upgrades.  Once the assessment is 

completed, a Library Facilities Master Plan will be developed to prioritize projects and determine 

funding. 
 
The objective of this project is to select a professional consultant who will submit a proposal to prepare 

a Library Facilities Condition Assessment. The assessment will identify improvements that can be 

51



ATTACHMENT 

 

4 

 

made to the facility and provide estimated costs for making the recommended improvements.  The 

assessment document must be structured in a manner that will allow the City to tailor the award of the 

project to a professional consultant through alternate or additive bid items.  The successful bidder for 

the library assessment will not be excluded from bidding on the design phase. 

 

Project Overview 
The Sierra Madre Public Library is located at 440 W. Sierra Madre Blvd.  The City also owns the 

property behind the Library at 449 Mariposa Avenue, which was rezoned as a Civic Zone in 2013 to 

allow for future use by the Library.  The Library building was designed by a well-known “mid-

century” architect, Robert Ainsworth, who lived with his family  in Sierra Madre at 601 E. Orange 

Grove, a home he also designed.  

 

This project calls for a Library Facility Condition Assessment of the existing structure and the 

feasibility of potential expansion (additive alternative).  The need for building upgrades is a goal of the 

City’s General Plan and the project has been reviewed in depth by the Library Facilities Master Plan 

Committee, and approved by the Library Board of Trustees. The City Council has approved the project 

in concept and has directed staff to seek proposals from qualified design companies to assess the 

condition of the library facility with costs for upgrades included. 

 
Scope of Services 

The project consultant shall prepare a building assessment that reviews existing conditions, determines 

project priority, and provides cost estimates for building upgrades of the Sierra Madre Public Library. 

Using the Checklist of Topics and Issues for an Existing Building Analysis* the overall scope of work 

shall include: 

 

 Structural: 

o Assess existing structure for seismic and vertical loads 

o Make recommendations for upgrades to improve safety and flexibility of uses 

o Assess feasibility of potential expansion (additive alternative) 

 Mechanical systems: 

o Assess condition and adequacy of existing HVAC systems 

o Assess condition and adequacy of existing plumbing systems 

o Determine if additional fire protection systems are required 

o Make recommendations for improving energy efficiency and sustainability using life-

cycle analysis 

o Assess adequacy of existing systems to handle potential expansion (additive alternative) 

 Electrical systems: 

o Assess condition and adequacy of existing electrical systems, including lighting, fire 

alarm, security systems, and data. 

o Make recommendations for improving energy efficiency and sustainability. 

o Assess adequacy of existing systems to handle potential expansion (additive alternative) 

 Plumbing systems: 

o Assess condition and adequacy of existing plumbing systems 

o Make recommendations for improving plumbing efficiency and sustainability 

o Assess adequacy of adding additional public restrooms 

 

52



ATTACHMENT 

 

5 

 

 Architectural: 

o Assess condition of building components not part of mechanical, electrical, or structural 

systems.  

o Make recommendations for improving energy efficiency and sustainability. 

o Make recommendations for improving acoustics, daylighting, and other design features 

of the building (shelving, circulation desk, interior space, ramp to basement, space for 

community room, egress on west walkway, parking). 

o Assess work required to comply with ADA and California Title 24. 

o Assess feasibility of potential expansion (written report and site plan only) (additive 

alternatives) 

 Zoning 

 Compliance with building and fire codes (areas and setbacks) 

 Parking 

 Vertical circulation 

 Potential uses 

For each of the above assessments the following deliverables should be included: 

o Written report on condition of existing building 

o Prioritized list of recommended improvements to the existing building 

o Cost estimate of recommended improvements to the existing structure 

o Written report and site plan addressing potential expansion (additive alternative) 

o Square footage building systems estimate of potential expansion and cost estimate  

(additive alternative) 

 

*A Checklist of Topics and Issues for an Existing Building Analysis 

1.   Seismic resistance 

capacity 

Determine what measures are likely to be required to meet current codes. 

2.   Structural load capacity Evaluate if the floor loading capacity is adequate for shelving throughout the 

existing structure to provide maximum flexibility. 

3.   Energy efficiency Determine and rank what features are particularly inefficient and need to be 

corrected.  Retrofit features should also be considered. 

4.   HVAC systems Study the heating/cooling systems and determine if they have reached the end of 

their useful lives. 

5.   Electrical systems Determine how extensive an upgrade will be required. 

6.   Lighting Evaluate what needs to be done to provide energy-efficiency and improve quality 

of light. 

7.   Telecommunications and 

technology 

Determine how easy it is to install new cabling in the existing building and where 

data closets are located. 

8.   Fire alarm Determine if system meets current standards. 

53



ATTACHMENT 

 

6 

 

9.   Security systems Evaluate security needs. 

10.  Plumbing systems Determine requirements for additional toilet facilities under current code. 

11.  Fire protection Determine if a sprinkler system is required. 

12.  Acoustics Determine if noise problems exist and if they need to be addressed. 

13.  Accessibility Determine what ADA upgrades will be required to meet current codes. 

14.  Shelving systems Determine if existing shelving systems meets current seismic standards and ADA 

requirements.   Evaluate the feasibility of keeping the existing shelving in place. 

15.  Architectural systems Review general condition of existing building including roofing, windows, 

exterior sheathing, and ceilings.  Include review of circulation desk, public 

seating, and computer stations.  Recommend changes to improve wayfinding and 

overall space organization. 

16.  Miscellaneous Determine any existing building aspects that may have cost implications in a 

renovation. 

 

The City has architectural drawings for the existing Library facility which will be made available to the 

contractor by request.  

 

 Robert Ainsworth Building Plans, 6-14-1954 

 Renovation Building Plans, for Director’s Office, Kitchen Remodel, Wesley Computer Room, 

Children’s Room 1990 – 2012 

 Building Plans for Community Room Addition, Elevator, Additional Public Restrooms, Friends 

Space, Wesley, August 1996 

 

The following documents have been identified which provide information about the library facility and 

will be available on the library website: 

 Wildan Overview, Fall 2013 

 Recommendations from Library Strategic Plan 2014-2017 

 California Preservation Assessment Project.  Sierra Madre Public Library.   Sierra Madre 

Historical Archives Collection.  Risk Assessment. October 2012 

 Assessment of Mechanical, Plumbing and Electrical:  Budlong & Associates, Inc. August 2002  

 Field Inspection Report:  Wheeler & Gray, Inc. August 2002  

 Library Board Capital Priorities November 2012  

 Structural Review:  Rodney B. Spears, Structural Engineer, November 2014  

 

Proposal Submittal Instructions 

Each proposing consultant shall provide two copies each of the three following separate documents: 

 

54



ATTACHMENT 

 

7 

 

1.  Company Qualifications 

This document shall provide general background on the proposing firm, including the 

following information: 

 

  Company History (Brief) 

  Current staffing levels 

  Current workload 

Recent projects of a similar nature, complete with contact names and telephone 

numbers for clients on those projects. 

 

2.  Project Approach 

This document shall describe the proposing firm’s envisioned approach to completion of the 

project and shall include (at least) the following information: 

Scope of services, listing each item of work, per phase 

Project schedule 

Quality control program 

Resumes of staff to be assigned to this project 
 

3.  Fee Proposal 

This document, to be provided under a separate cover, shall describe the proposing firm’s 

proposed Not-to-Exceed fees for the provision of the Scope of Services described under Project 

Approach and shall include (at least) the following information: 

 Proposed fee for each item of work listed in Scope of Services 

Listing of proposed man-hours for each item of work listed in Scope of Services 

 Schedule of Hourly Rates 

 

RFP Schedule of Events 

RFP Event Date 

1 City Issues RFP June 12 2015 

2 Deadline for Letter of Intent to Propose (required) June 26, 2015 

5 Deadline for Receipt of Proposal July 24, 2015(3:00 pm) 

7 City Determines Finalist for Library Facilities Assessment August 14, 2015 

8 Award Contract September 8, 2015 

9 Consultant delivers assessment to City October 27, 2015 

 

Following the acceptance of the assessment by the City, the Consultant will make presentations at the 

following meetings (dates to be arranged): 

 Library Facilities Master Plan Committee 

 Library Board of Trustees 

 City Council 

 

The City reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to adjust this schedule as it deems necessary. 

Notification of any adjustment to the RFP Schedule of Events will be provided to all vendors that 

submitted a Letter of Intent to Propose. 

 
Vendors should be prepared to propose a solution and approach that meets this timeline, or propose an 

alternative based on vendor’s past experience with similar efforts. 

55



ATTACHMENT 

 

8 

 

 

 

 

 

RFP Coordinator 

All communications concerning this RFP must be submitted in email to the RFP Coordinator Carolyn 

Thomas (Library Director). The RFP Coordinator will be the sole point of contact for this RFP. All 

requests for additional information or clarification should be asked of the RFP Coordinator. The 

coordinator can be reached via email at: 

 
 Coordinator Email 

 Carolyn Thomas cthomas@cityofsierramadre.com 

 

Sealed proposals are due in the office of the Library Director, Sierra Madre Public Library, 440 West 

Sierra Madre Boulevard, Sierra Madre, CA 91024.  Late proposals shall not be accepted, and shall be 

returned unopened.  Faxed or emailed proposals will not be accepted; proposals received by facsimile 

will be immediately destroyed. 
 
Proposal Evaluation 

The City shall review all proposals to determine which vendors have qualified for consideration. The 

initial review will evaluate all submissions for conformance to stated specifications to eliminate all 

responses that deviate substantially from the basic intent and/or fail to satisfy the mandatory 

requirements. Following the initial review, the evaluators will do a more detailed review of vendor 

proposals.  

 

Proposals will be evaluated based on the following evaluation criteria: 

 Quality, clarity, and responsiveness of proposal. 

 Ability to provide an overview of how company will prepare Library Facility Condition 

Assessment. 

 Description of Company qualifications. 

 Company financial stability. 

 Compliance with code requirements and reasonable costs. 

 References for similar work completed in public libraries. 
 Results of interviews, demonstrations, and site visits. 

 

The City reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to request clarifications of proposals or to conduct 

discussions for the purpose of clarification with any or all vendors. The purpose of any such 

discussions shall be to ensure full understanding of the proposal. Discussions shall be limited to 

specific sections of the proposal identified by the City and, if held, shall be after initial evaluation of 

proposals are complete. If clarifications are made as a result of such discussion, the vendor shall put 

such clarifications in writing. 

 

Desirable Elements 

It would be desirable to select a consultant who has experience in the design or renovation of library 

projects and experience with condition assessments for public buildings. 

 

 

Attachment A: Sample Professional Services Agreement 

56

mailto:cthomas@cityofsierramadre.com


ATTACHMENT 

 

9 

 

  
 
 

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA   ITEM NUMBER_______ 
  

1,2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:     Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council  
 
FROM:    Elaine Aguilar, City Manager 
 
INITIATED BY: Vincent Gonzalez, Director of Planning and Community Preservation  
 
DATE:     June 9, 2015 
  
SUBJECT: Conditional Use Permit 14-07 (CUP 14-07) and Variance 15-01 (VAR 

15-01) – Request to allow Verizon Wireless to install a new wireless 
telecommunications facility along the east side of the public right-of-
way on Oak Meadow Road and 230 feet north of East Orange Grove 
Avenue.   

   

 
SUMMARY 
 
The applicant, Verizon Wireless, has submitted a request for a Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) and Variance (VAR) to allow the replacement of an existing 35-foot-high 
Southern California Edison pole and installation of a new 39-foot 6-inch-pole that 
includes a stealth wireless telecommunications facility with one (1) antenna. Pursuant to 
Section 17.93.060, all wireless telecommunications facilities located within the public-
right-of-way shall require approval of a conditional use permit. Pursuant to Code Section 
17.93.050.A.10, a variance is required for wireless facilities located less than 50 feet 
from a residential property line.    
 
At its May 7, 2015 meeting, the Planning Commission recommended approval of 
Conditional Use Permit 14-07 and Variance 15-01 to the City Council. Staff 
recommends that the City Council approve Conditional Use Permit 14-07 and Variance 
15-01, pursuant to City Council Resolution 15-28. 
 
 
DISCUSSION / ANALYSIS 
 
The project site/location is within the public right-of-way along the east side of Oak 
Meadow Road and approximately 230 feet north of East Orange Grove Avenue. The 

John Capoccia, Mayor 
Gene Goss, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member 
Denise Delmar, Council Member 
John Harabedian, Council Member 
 
Nancy Shollenberger, City Clerk 
Richard Mays, City Treasurer 
 

 

 

City of Sierra Madre 
Agenda Report 

102



CUP 14-07 & VAR 15-01                  page  
June 9, 2015 
 

 
 

2

 

adjacent residential area is zoned R-1-15 (One Family Residential) and has a General 
Plan land use designation of RL (Residential Low Density).  The project site is currently 
occupied with a 35-foot-high Southern California Edison pole and is located 
approximately 15 feet from the nearest residential property line to the east.    
 
The project site is surrounded by R-1-15 properties to the north, south, east, and west. 
Oak Meadow Road is a cul-de-sac that is developed with single family residences on 
both side of the street. Since the public right-of-way is owned by the City, the required 
consent to submit this application was granted to the applicant, Core Development 
Services, by the City Council at their meeting on March 24, 2015; City Manager Elaine 
Aguilar signed and dated the Owner’s Affidavit on March 25, 2015.  
 
Verizon Wireless is currently working with the City to finalize the lease agreement, and 
a condition of approval has been included in the City Council Resolution requiring that it 
be approved prior to 1st Plan Check submittal.  
 
Proposed Project 
 
Verizon Wireless is requesting approval to replace an existing 35-foot-high Southern 
California Edison (SCE) street light pole and install a new 39-foot 6-inch pole that 
includes a stealth1 wireless telecommunications facility at the top. 
 
The proposed wireless telecommunications facility consists of 1 (one) antenna on top of 
the proposed pole and 2 (two) radio remote units (RRUs), which will match the design 
and color of the existing pole and will continue to serve as a Southern California Edison 
street light pole. Verizon Wireless will also install 2 (two) 15-gallon Toyon shrubs to 
screen the proposed 200 AMP electrical meter, which will be installed to the south of the 
facility within the parkway. According to the applicant, the goal is to enhance the 
coverage and capacity in the residential area between Oak Meadow Drive and 
Hacienda Drive in Arcadia.  
 
Development Standards 
 
The proposed project complies with Code Section 17.93.040(A)(1) in that the new 
facility will be located within the public right-of-way.  In addition to these requirements, 
wireless facilities in the City are regulated by several development standards pursuant 
to Code Section 17.93.050, each of which must be entered into the record to constitute 
“Finding 3” of the findings specific to Chapter 17.93.060.E, as follows: 

 

A. General Development Standards: 

 

                                            
1 Pursuant to Code Section 17.93.020 (“Definitions”), a stealth facility is a wireless telecommunication 
facility design to blend with the surrounding environment, to be minimally visible and to appear as a 
natural feature, such as a tree, a rock or other natural feature.   

103



CUP 14-07 & VAR 15-01                  page  
June 9, 2015 
 

 
 

3

 

1. Compliance with the general plan and applicable specific plans; General Plan 
Objective C31 is to “provide adequate water, wastewater/sewer, storm drainage, 
electrical, and telecommunications systems to meet the demands of new and 
existing development.” 

 

2. All wireless communication facilities shall be sited to minimize their impact 
upon scenic views; this project involves replacing an existing SCE pole with a new 
pole to accommodate a new wireless telecommunications facility that includes one (1) 
antenna and two (2) radio remote units (RRUs) designed to blend in with the pole, 
thereby minimizing their impact on any scenic views.  The new pole will be very similar 
to the existing pole and will continue to be used by SCE to provide street lighting on 
Oak Meadow Road. 

 

3. Wireless communication facilities located on vacant lots shall be considered 
temporary and the commission or city council, as the case may be, may impose 
conditions that such facilities shall be removed, and if appropriate, replaced with 
building-mounted facilities when the site is developed; the project site is not a 
vacant lot.   

 

4. All wireless communication facilities shall be substantially screened from view 
of surrounding properties and the public view; the new pole will resemble the 
existing Southern California Edison pole and will continue to be used as such, in 
addition to providing wireless communication. 

 

5. All wireless communication facilities shall be designed, located and operated 
to avoid interference with the quiet enjoyment of adjacent properties, and at a 
minimum shall be subject to the noise standards of Chapter 9.32 of this code. 
Where the director finds that the noise of such facility may have a detrimental 
effect on an adjacent property, he/she may require an independent acoustic 
analysis, at the applicant’s expense, to identify appropriate mitigation measures; 
the facility shall be built and maintained in compliance with the standards set forth in the 
City of Sierra Madre Municipal Code, including those standards for noise.  Although no 
noise determinations have been made concerning the project, the Director still reserves 
the right to prepare an acoustic analysis. 

 

6. Facilities located on properties owned or controlled by the city shall not exceed 
sixty feet in height; the height of the new wireless telecommunications facility will be 
39-feet 6-inches.  

 

7. Barbed wire, razor wire, electrified fence, and any other type of hazardous 
fence are prohibited; no “hazardous” fencing is proposed as part of this application. 

104



CUP 14-07 & VAR 15-01                  page  
June 9, 2015 
 

 
 

4

 

 

8. Equipment shelters shall be architecturally compatible with neighboring 
structures on- and off-site; an equipment enclosure is not proposed or necessary for 
this site. All associated equipment will be located below grade and along the side of the 
pole. 

 

9. No advertising or signs other than owner identification and warning signs 
approved by the director shall be allowed on-site; no other signage is proposed 
under this application. 

 

10. No wireless communication facility shall be located less than fifty feet from a 
residential property line; a variance request has been made concurrently with the 
application for this conditional use permit to allow the proposed wireless 
telecommunications facility to be located within fifty feet of a residential property line.   

 

11. No ground-mounted equipment within a public right-of-way may exceed a 
height of five feet and/or an area of fifteen square feet; ground-mounted equipment 
is not being proposed for this project.  

 

12. Equipment sheds and other ground-level ancillary components of a wireless 
communications facility shall be constructed and maintained below grade 
whenever the commission or city council, as the case may be, determines that 
undergrounding is necessary to preserve scenic views, protect the aesthetics of 
surrounding properties, or for reasons of traffic or public safety; although 
undergrounding is not required in this case as equipment sheds are not being proposed 
for this project, a pull box for fiber will be placed below grade. 

 

B. Development Standards for Roof-Mounted Facilities:  Not applicable as the 
proposed facility is a stand-alone stealth facility. 

 

C. Development Standards for Monopoles: 

 

1. An applicant shall demonstrate that a proposed facility cannot be placed on 
an existing building or co-located and the director may require an 
independent, third-party review, at the applicant’s expense, to identify 
alternatives to a proposed monopole.  The proposed facility will be located on a 
new SCE street lighting pole that is replacing an existing pole and which will 
continue to be utilized for street lighting purposes, in addition to providing wireless 
service.  The existing pole is being replaced to allow the placement of the antennas 
associated with the wireless function to be installed onto the pole. 

105



CUP 14-07 & VAR 15-01                  page  
June 9, 2015 
 

 
 

5

 

 
 
FINDINGS 
 
Conditional Use Permit Findings Specific to Wireless Facilities (SMMC 17.93.060.E) 
 
 
1. The placement, construction, or modification of a wireless 

telecommunications facility in the proposed location is necessary for the 
provision of wireless services to Sierra Madre residents, businesses, and 
their owners, customers, guests or other persons traveling in or about the 
city; in that the goal of the proposed facility is to improve wireless service and 
reduce the existing gap in cell phone coverage in Sierra Madre and the vicinity.  

 
2. The proposal demonstrates a reasonable attempt to minimize standalone 

facilities, is designed to protect the visual quality of the city, and will not 
have an undue adverse impact on historic resources, scenic views, or 
other natural or man-made resources; in that the proposed project matches 
the design of the existing SCE pole and will have no measurable impact on city 
views; no other resources will be impacted.  
 

3. That one of the following is true: (a) all applicable requirements and 
standards of this chapter have been met; (b) a variance has been granted 
from any requirement or standard of this chapter which has not been met; 
(c) strict compliance with the requirements and standards of this chapter 
would not provide for adequate radio frequency signal reception and that 
no other alternative design of the facility would meet the development 
standards is feasible; a variance is being considered concurrently with this 
application to allow for the new wireless facility to be located within 50 feet of a 
residential property line. In addition to all other requirements in this chapter, a 
wireless communication facility shall not be placed in a residential zone unless 
the applicant proves each of the following, pursuant to Code Section 
17.93.040.B:  

 
1. Prohibition of such location would prevent service to areas 

accessible by the public rights-of-way; in that, according to the 
applicant, this site allows Verizon Wireless to improve the effectiveness of 
cell service to the immediate vicinity, particularly to the residential uses to 
the north, south, east, and west of the proposed site.  

 
2. Infeasibility of locating the facility elsewhere; in that alternative 

locations were considered that would have also utilized existing utility 
structures/poles, all within the vicinity of the proposed location. Placement 
of cellular sites are dependent on the location where there is a gap in 
coverage. Locating the cell site elsewhere would not have addressed the 
need for coverage in this area.  

106



CUP 14-07 & VAR 15-01                  page  
June 9, 2015 
 

 
 

6

 

 
3. The facility is designed as a stealth facility; in that the facility will match 

the existing Southern California Edison pole in design, location, and use.  
 

4. The law otherwise requires the city to permit such location; in that 
Verizon Wireless is a registered public utility company, licensed and 
regulated by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) and the 
Federal Communications Commission (FCC). As such, Verizon Wireless 
is required to provide wireless communication services where existing 
coverage and capacity gaps exist. All other applicable requirements and 
standards have been met. 

 
Generally Applicable Conditional Use Permit Findings (SMMC 17.60.040) 
 
In addition to the above findings specific to wireless facilities, the following findings 
required for any Conditional Use Permit pursuant to Code Section 17.60.040 must also 
be made: 
 
1. The site for the proposed use is adequate in size, shape and topography; in 

that the site is within the public right-of-way, does not have any significant 
topographical features, and the proposed wireless telecommunications facility will 
match the design, color and placement of the existing Southern California Edison 
pole. 

 
2. The site has sufficient access to streets which are adequate, in width and 

pavement type to carry the quantity and quality of traffic generated by the 
proposed use; in that the proposed wireless telecommunications facility will be 
located in the public right-of-way and will replace an existing utility pole. This facility 
is unmanned and only requires periodic maintenance which equates to 
approximately one trip per month. 

 
3. The proposed use will not unreasonably interfere with the use, possession 

and enjoyment of surrounding and adjacent properties; in that the proposed 
use is an unmanned wireless telecommunications facility that will replace an 
existing utility pole. There will not be an increase in vehicular or pedestrian traffic in 
the area as a direct result of this use. 

 
4.  There is a demonstrated need for the use requested; in that the proposed project 

will provide service to Verizon Wireless customers in Sierra Madre for both residents 
and visitors.  
 

4. The use will, as to location and operation, be consistent with the objectives of 
the General Plan; in that General Plan Objective C31 requires that adequate water, 
wastewater/sewer, storm drainage, electrical, and telecommunications systems are 
provided to meet the demands of new and existing development.” 
 

107



CUP 14-07 & VAR 15-01                  page  
June 9, 2015 
 

 
 

7

 

5. The public interest, convenience, and necessity require that the use be 
permitted at the location requested; in that the location and configuration of the 
wireless equipment has been selected so there will be very minimal impacts, if any, 
to the neighboring properties.  The facility will be unmanned and will not interfere 
with the existing daily use of the surrounding properties or the public right-of-way.  
Through the installation of this wireless facility, a wider area will be established to 
better serve the citizens and patrons and visitors of Sierra Madre and its immediate 
surroundings. 

 
Variance 

 
The granting of a Variance requires that the applicant show, to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the body hearing such matter, the following findings pursuant to Code 
Section 17.60.020:                                                      

 
 

1. The conditions of the Variance will assure that the adjustment thereby 
authorized will not constitute a grant of special privileges inconsistent with 
the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which such 
property is situated; in that the surrounding area that the proposed wireless 
facility is serving is consistently developed with residential uses, and it is 
necessary that the location of the facility be in close proximity to the area that it is 
aiming to serve, and would therefore not constitute a special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitations placed on other wireless facilities that would also 
wish to serve adjacent areas developed with only residential uses.  Other 
locations in the city would not need a variance to allow the same wireless 
communications use if they were not solely developed with residential uses.      

 
2. The Variance will not authorize a use or activity which is not otherwise 

expressly authorized by the zone regulation governing the parcel of 
property; in that wireless communication facilities are permitted in all zones, 
subject to the granting of the necessary permits and entitlements. 
 

3. The applicant has shown that there are special circumstances applicable to 
the property involved, such as size, shape, topography, location or 
surroundings, which do not generally apply to other adjacent properties 
included in the same zone as the subject property;   in that the location is 
surrounded solely by residential properties which it aims to serve, and wireless 
facilities in other areas that include properties developed with uses other than 
residential would not have the same limitation.     

 
4. The special circumstances make the granting of the zone variance 

necessary in order to facilitate a reasonable use of the property involved; in 
that the Variance will allow expanded Verizon wireless services within the City 
and surrounding area. 

 

108



CUP 14-07 & VAR 15-01                  page  
June 9, 2015 
 

 
 

8

 

5. The Variance will be consistent with the objectives of the General Plan and 
the Zoning Ordinance; in that the General Plan Objective C31 is to “provide 
adequate… telecommunications systems to meet the demands of new and 
existing development.”  And the Zoning Ordinance encourages co-location with 
an existing facility or structure so as to not create substantial visual impacts, as 
well as the use of stealth facilities. 

 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW 
 
The proposed project will generate revenue for the City to be specified in a lease 
contract between the City and Verizon Wireless. 

 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL 
 
The project qualifies for Class 1 Categorical Exemption, pursuant to Section 15303 
(New Construction) of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as it involves 
the conversion of existing small structures from one use to another where only minor 
modifications are made in the exterior of the structure.  
 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The City Council has the following alternatives: 
 

1. Approve Resolution 15-28 approving Conditional Use Permit 14-07 and Variance 
15-01, based on the exhibits submitted and the Agenda Report prepared for the 
subject property;  
 

2. Deny Resolution 15-28 denying Conditional Use Permit 14-07 and Variance 15-
01, identifying the findings that the City Council feels cannot be made and the 
basis for rejecting these findings; 
 

3. Continue the subject project for further information. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve Conditional Use Permit 14-07 and 
Variance 15-01 pursuant to City Council Resolution 15-28 and the exhibits and report 
provided by Staff.   
 
 
Attachments: 

 

109



CUP 14-07 & VAR 15-01                  page  
June 9, 2015 
 

 
 

9

 

1. Exhibit A: City Council Resolution 15-28 
2. Exhibit B: Site Plan 
3. Exhibit C: Site Photos 
4. Exhibit D: Photo Simulation 
5. Exhibit E: Project Application 
6. Exhibit F: Project Narrative 
7. Exhibit G: Vicinity Map 
8. Exhibit H: Map of Existing and Future Coverage Areas 
9. Exhibit I: Technical Justification Letter dated December 2, 2014 
10. Exhibit J: Radio Frequency Emissions Report dated March 4, 2015 
11. Exhibit K: Radio Frequency Signage 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

110



111



CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 15-28 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA  
MADRE APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 14-07 AND VARIANCE 15-01 TO 
REPLACE AN EXISTING 35-FOOT-HIGH SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON (SCE) 

POLE WITH A NEW 39-FOOT 6-INCH-HIGH SCE POLE THAT INCLUDES A 
VERIZON WIRELESS STEALTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY WITH ONE 
ANTENNA WITHIN 50 FEET OF A RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY LINE ALONG THE 

EAST SIDE OF THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ON OAK MEADOW ROAD AND 230 
FEET NORTH OF WEST ORANGE GROVE AVENUE. 

  
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE: 
 

WHEREAS, applications for a Conditional Use Permit and Variance were 
filed by: 

 
Verizon Wireless 

15505 Sand Canyon Avenue 
Irvine, CA  92618 

 
WHEREAS, the request for a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT and 

VARIANCE can be described as: 
 
The replacement of an existing 35-foot-high Southern California Edison (SCE) pole and 
installation of a new 39-foot 6-inch SCE pole as a stealth wireless telecommunications 
facility with one (1) antenna. Pursuant to Section 17.93.060, all wireless 
telecommunications facilities located within the public-right-of-way shall require the 
approval of a conditional use permit. Pursuant to Code Section 17.93.050.A.10, a 
variance is required for wireless facilities located less than 50 feet from a residential 
property line.    
 

WHEREAS, the Conditional Use Permit and Variance would apply to the SCE 
pole located within the east side of the public right-of-way along Oak Meadow Road and 
230 feet north of West Orange Grove Avenue; 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has received the report and 
recommendations of staff, and at its meeting of May 7, 2015, recommended for 
approval to the City Council; 
 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Planning Commission on May 
7, 2015, with all testimony received being made part of the public record; 

 
WHEREAS,   the   proposed   project qualifies   for a   Class 1 Categorical 

Exemption,   pursuant   to    Section    15301   (Existing Facilities)    of    the    California 

112



Resolution 15-28 
June 9, 2015  

 2

Environmental  Quality  Act  (CEQA)   as  it  involves  the  conversion of existing small 
structures from one use to another  where  only minor modifications  are  made  in the 
exterior of the structure.  . 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the evidence received at the 

hearing, and for the reasons discussed by the Commissioners at said hearing, the 
Planning Commission now finds the following: 

 
Conditional Use Permit Findings Specific to Wireless Facilities (SMMC 
17.93.060.E) 
 
 
1. The placement, construction, or modification of a wireless 

telecommunications facility in the proposed location is necessary for the 
provision of wireless services to Sierra Madre residents, businesses, and 
their owners, customers, guests or other persons traveling in or about the 
city; in that the goal of the proposed facility is to improve wireless service and 
reduce the existing gap in cell phone coverage in Sierra Madre and the vicinity.  

 
2. The proposal demonstrates a reasonable attempt to minimize standalone 

facilities, is designed to protect the visual quality of the city, and will not 
have an undue adverse impact on historic resources, scenic views, or 
other natural or man-made resources; in that the proposed project matches 
the design of the existing SCE pole and will have no measurable impact on city 
views; no other resources will be impacted.  
 

3. That one of the following is true: (a) all applicable requirements and 
standards of this chapter have been met; (b) a variance has been granted 
from any requirement or standard of this chapter which has not been met; 
(c) strict compliance with the requirements and standards of this chapter 
would not provide for adequate radio frequency signal reception and that 
no other alternative design of the facility would meet the development 
standards is feasible; a variance is being considered concurrently with this 
application to allow for the new wireless facility to be located within 50 feet of a 
residential property line. In addition to all other requirements in this chapter, a 
wireless communication facility shall not be placed in a residential zone unless 
the applicant proves each of the following, pursuant to Code Section 
17.93.040.B:  

 
1. Prohibition of such location would prevent service to areas 

accessible by the public rights-of-way; in that, according to the 
applicant, this site allows Verizon Wireless to improve the effectiveness of 

113



Resolution 15-28 
June 9, 2015   

 3

cell service to the immediate vicinity, particularly to the residential uses to 
the north, south, east, and west of the proposed site.  

 
2. Infeasibility of locating the facility elsewhere; in that alternative 

locations were considered that would have also utilized existing utility 
structures/poles, all within the vicinity of the proposed location. Placement 
of cellular sites are dependent on the location where there is a gap in 
coverage. Locating the cell site elsewhere would not have addressed the 
need for coverage in this area.  

 
3. The facility is designed as a stealth facility; in that the facility will match 

the existing Southern California Edison pole in design, location, and use.  
 

4. The law otherwise requires the city to permit such location; in that 
Verizon Wireless is a registered public utility company, licensed and 
regulated by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) and the 
Federal Communications Commission (FCC). As such, Verizon Wireless 
is required to provide wireless communication services where existing 
coverage and capacity gaps exist. All other applicable requirements and 
standards have been met. 

 
Generally Applicable Conditional Use Permit Findings (SMMC 17.60.040) 
 
In addition to the above findings specific to wireless facilities, the following findings 
required for any Conditional Use Permit pursuant to Code Section 17.60.040 must also 
be made: 
 
1. The site for the proposed use is adequate in size, shape and topography; in 

that the site is within the public right-of-way, does not have any significant 
topographical features, and the proposed wireless telecommunications facility will 
match the design, color and placement of the existing Southern California Edison 
pole. 

 
2. The site has sufficient access to streets which are adequate, in width and 

pavement type to carry the quantity and quality of traffic generated by the 
proposed use; in that the proposed wireless telecommunications facility will be 
located in the public right-of-way and will replace an existing utility pole. This facility 
is unmanned and only requires periodic maintenance which equates to 
approximately one trip per month. 

 
3. The proposed use will not unreasonably interfere with the use, possession 

and enjoyment of surrounding and adjacent properties; in that the proposed 
use is an unmanned wireless telecommunications facility that will replace an 

114



Resolution 15-28 
June 9, 2015   

 4

existing utility pole. There will not be an increase in vehicular or pedestrian traffic in 
the area as a direct result of this use. 

 
4.  There is a demonstrated need for the use requested; in that the proposed project 

will provide service to Verizon Wireless customers in Sierra Madre for both residents 
and visitors.  
 

4. The use will, as to location and operation, be consistent with the objectives of 
the General Plan; in that General Plan Objective C31 requires that adequate water, 
wastewater/sewer, storm drainage, electrical, and telecommunications systems are 
provided to meet the demands of new and existing development.” 
 

5. The public interest, convenience, and necessity require that the use be 
permitted at the location requested; in that the location and configuration of the 
wireless equipment has been selected so there will be very minimal impacts, if any, 
to the neighboring properties.  The facility will be unmanned and will not interfere 
with the existing daily use of the surrounding properties or the public right-of-way.  
Through the installation of this wireless facility, a wider area will be established to 
better serve the citizens and patrons and visitors of Sierra Madre and its immediate 
surroundings. 

 
Variance 

 
The granting of a Variance requires that the applicant show, to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the body hearing such matter, the following findings pursuant to Code 
Section 17.60.020:                                                      

 
 

1. The conditions of the Variance will assure that the adjustment thereby 
authorized will not constitute a grant of special privileges inconsistent with 
the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which such 
property is situated; in that the surrounding area that the proposed wireless 
facility is serving is consistently developed with residential uses, and it is 
necessary that the location of the facility be in close proximity to the area that it is 
aiming to serve, and would therefore not constitute a special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitations placed on other wireless facilities that would also 
wish to serve adjacent areas developed with only residential uses.  Other 
locations in the city would not need a variance to allow the same wireless 
communications use if they were not solely developed with residential uses.      

 
2. The Variance will not authorize a use or activity which is not otherwise 

expressly authorized by the zone regulation governing the parcel of 

115



Resolution 15-28 
June 9, 2015   

 5

property; in that wireless communication facilities are permitted in all zones, 
subject to the granting of the necessary permits and entitlements. 
 

3. The applicant has shown that there are special circumstances applicable to 
the property involved, such as size, shape, topography, location or 
surroundings, which do not generally apply to other adjacent properties 
included in the same zone as the subject property;   in that the location is 
surrounded solely by residential properties which it aims to serve, and wireless 
facilities in other areas that include properties developed with uses other than 
residential would not have the same limitation.     

 
4. The special circumstances make the granting of the zone variance 

necessary in order to facilitate a reasonable use of the property involved; in 
that the Variance will allow expanded Verizon wireless services within the City 
and surrounding area. 

 
5. The Variance will be consistent with the objectives of the General Plan and 

the Zoning Ordinance; in that the General Plan Objective C31 is to “provide 
adequate… telecommunications systems to meet the demands of new and 
existing development.”  And the Zoning Ordinance encourages co-location with 
an existing facility or structure so as to not create substantial visual impacts, as 
well as the use of stealth facilities. 

 
PURSUANT TO THE ABOVE FINDINGS, IT IS RESOLVED that the City Council 
approves of Conditional Use Permit 14-07 and Variance 15-01,  subject to the 
conditions of approval in Exhibit A. 
 
The time in which to seek judicial review of this decision shall be governed by Code of 
Civil Procedure Section 1094.6.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this 
resolution, transmit copies of the same to the applicant and his counsel, if any, together 
with a proof of mailing in the form required by law and shall enter a certified copy of this 
resolution in the book of resolution of the City. 
 
 
APPROVED and ADOPTED, this 9th day of June, 2015, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
   
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  

116



Resolution 15-28 
June 9, 2015   

 6

 
 
 
 
                                      

                        John Capoccia, Mayor 
                            City of Sierra Madre 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Nancy Shollenberger, City Clerk 
 
 
I, NANCY SHOLLENBERGER, CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE, 
hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Sierra Madre at a regular meeting held on the 9th day of June, 2015.  

 
 
 

_________________________________  
                                                          Nancy Shollenberger, City Clerk  

 

117



Resolution 15-28 
June 9, 2015   

 7

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

CUP 14-07 and VAR 15-01 
 

General Conditions: 
 
Applicant, leaseholder and Verizon Wireless shall: 
 

1.  Comply with all applicable provisions of the Sierra Madre Municipal Code, 
including but not limited to those Chapters pertaining to Zoning, Building and 
Construction, Vehicles and Traffic, and Health and Safety, and including all such 
provisions which may be contained in Uniform Codes which have been incorporated by 
reference within the Sierra Madre Municipal Code. 
 

2.  Comply with all applicable provisions of Federal, State and Los Angeles 
County law and regulations, including but not limited to the California Environmental 
Quality Act. 
 

3.  Execute and deliver to the City’s Department of Development Services an 
Affidavit of Acceptance of Conditions on a form to be provided by such Department prior 
to submitting construction plans for 1st Plan Check. This approval shall not be effective 
for any purpose until the Applicant complies with this condition. 

 
4.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, fully protect the City, its employees, 

agents and officials from any loss, injury, damage, claim, lawsuit, expense, attorneys’ 
fees, litigation expenses, court costs or any other costs arising out of or in any way 
related to the issuance of this approval, or the activities conducted pursuant to this 
approval. Accordingly, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the applicant, leaseholder 
and Verizon Wireless shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless City, its employees, 
agents and officials, from and against any liability, claims, suits, actions, arbitration 
proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any kind, whether 
actual, alleged or threatened, including, but not limited to, actual attorneys’ fees, 
litigation expenses and court costs of any kind without restriction or limitation, incurred 
in relation to, as a consequence of, arising out of or in any way attributable to, actually, 
allegedly or impliedly, in whole or in part, the issuance of this approval, or the activities 
conducted pursuant to this approval. Applicant, leaseholder and Wireless Wireless shall 
pay such obligations as they are incurred by City, its employees, agents and officials, 
and in the event of any claim or lawsuit, shall submit a deposit in such amount as the 
City reasonably determines necessary to protect the City from exposure to fees, costs 
or liability with respect to such claim or lawsuit. 

 

Planning Conditions:  

118



Resolution 15-28 
June 9, 2015   

 8

 

Applicant, leaseholder and Verizon Wireless shall: 

1. Construct the project in substantial conformance with all applications and 
supporting materials presented to the Planning Commission on May 7, 2015. 
Inaccuracies and misrepresentations will be grounds for immediate revocation of 
the Conditional Use Permit and Variance.  

2. Submit construction plans, for 1st Plan Check within one (1) year of the date of 
this approval; failure to do so will constitute an abandonment of the entitlement, 
and shall render this approval null and void. 
 

3. Ensure that the wireless communication facility shall not generate 
electromagnetic field (EMF) exposure or other measurable radiation in excess of 
the standards for permissible human exposure, as provided by applicable federal 
regulations.  
 

4. Provide to the Director of Planning and Community Preservation, within sixty 
days of the wireless communications facility becoming operational, a report 
indicating the actual EMF levels measured at the property line of the nearest 
point of public access, whichever is closer, in the direction of maximum radiation 
from each antenna. Reports shall specify signal levels with the site operating at 
full power and baseline levels with the site inoperative. Technical data shall be 
presented showing levels relative to the currently permitted federal regulations. 
Raw measurements shall be provided as an appendix. In addition, the report 
shall summarize in lay terms the technical data presented. 
 

5. Every two years, the operator of a wireless communication facility shall test EMF 
exposure levels and submit a written report of test results to the director. In years 
when testing is not required, the operator of a wireless communication facility 
shall submit to the director written certification by an independent licensed 
engineer that no modifications have been made to the facility design or 
configuration that have increased or will increase EMF exposure as compared to 
the permitted facilities or the facilities that were present at the time of the last 
report to the director.  If modifications have been made to the facility which have 
increased or will likely increase EMF exposure, the operator shall provide a 
supplemental report measuring the modified facility.  

 
6. Be subject to the cost of the EMF reports required by these conditions, which 

shall be prepared by a third party consultant acceptable to the director using a 
testing protocol acceptable to the Director of Planning and Community 
Preservation.  

119



Resolution 15-28 
June 9, 2015   

 9

 

7. Maintain the appearance and integrity of the wireless telecommunications facility.  

 

Public Works Conditions: 

Applicant, leaseholder and Verizon Wireless shall: 

1. Obtain approval of an Encroachment Permit prior to 1st Plan Check Submittal. 

2. Obtain approval of a lease agreement with the City of Sierra Madre prior to 1st 
Plan Check submittal.  

(end of conditions) 

    

 
            

 

120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



RESOLUTION NO. 15-29 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 
ADOPTING THE MID-YEAR BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AND 

APPROPRIATING THE AMOUNTS PROJECTED 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager did present the City’s 2014-2015 budget to the 
City Council for its consideration; and the City Council did, in a public meeting, carefully 
consider the budget; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on July 24, 2015 the City Council adopted the revised budget; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has committed additional appropriations during the 
fiscal year; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 9, 2015, the City Manager did proposed mid-year budget 

amendments for the City of Sierra Madre (City) for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 
2014 and concluding June 30, 2015 was submitted to the City Council and is on file at 
City Hall; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council did, in a public meeting, receive input from the City 

Manager, Assistant City Manager, additional staff and the public for amendments to the 
recommended amendments to the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 biennial budget; and 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE DOES RESOLVE AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The budget, as amended, is adopted as for the City of Sierra Madre 
for Fiscal Year commencing July 1, 2014 and concluding June 30, 2015. 
 
 SECTION 2. Appropriations for the City as described in the documents titled 
“Projected Ending Balances for FY 2014-2015” and said attachments are attached 
hereto as exhibits “A”, are hereby adopted for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2014 
and concluding on June 30, 2015. 
 

SECTION 3. The City Manager and Finance Director are hereby authorized to 
make transfers between budget line items in accordance with the Budget Policies 
adopted by the City Council, on April 11, 2001. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2014. 
 
ORIGINAL SIGNED 
 

John Capoccia, Mayor, 
City of Sierra Madre, California 

232



 
  
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 15-29 was adopted at a regular 
meeting of the City Council of the City of Sierra Madre held on this 9th day of June 2015 
by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
 
ORIGINAL SIGNED 

Nancy Shollenberger, City Clerk, 
City of Sierra Madre, California 

 

233



EXHIBIT "A" 

P 1 of 2

Adopted Budget 

FY 2014-2015

Projected 

FY 2014-2015

Revenues

Property Taxes 3,968,000$               3,978,000$               

AB1X26 147,000                    200,000                    

Sales Tax 187,683                    200,000                    

Utility User Tax 2,460,000                 2,495,000                 

VLF/Property Tax 1,002,105                 1,045,000                 

Other Taxes 67,972                       68,000                       

Charges for Services 199,345                    187,000                    

Intergovernmental 3,856                         6,000                         

Business Licenses 263,770                    260,000                    

Franchise Fees 350,840                    351,000                    

Licenses and Permits-Other 132,327                    136,000                    

Fines and Forfeitures 220,399                    237,000                    

Investment income 5,073                         10,000                       

Miscellaneous 9,022                         35,000                       

Total Revenue 9,017,392                 9,208,000                 

Expenditures

Administration 1,354,629                 1,353,000                 

Community Services 247,324                    202,000                    

Elected and Appointed 335,123                    330,000                    

Fire 921,282                    1,046,000                 

Library 794,080                    781,000                    

Police 3,906,106                 3,865,000                 

Public Works 556,447                    476,000                    

Total Expenditures 8,114,991                 8,053,000                 

Transfers In/(Out)

Transfer in 99,911                       100,000                    

Transfer out (819,323)                   (899,000)                   

Total Net Transfers In/(Out) (719,412)                   (799,000)                   

Net change in fund balances 182,989$              356,000$              

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE

Projected Ending Balances for FY 2014-2015

General Fund

234



EXHIBIT "A" 

P 2 of 2

Adopted Budget 

FY 2014-2015

Projected 

FY 2014-2015

Revenues

General Fund 9,017,392$               9,208,000$               

Special Revenue 2,320,192                 3,371,000                 

Internal Services 4,428,066                 4,376,000                 

Water 3,795,525                 4,067,000                 

Sewer 744,010                    785,000                    

Business Funds 216,000                    244,000                    

Successory Agency 611,800                    612,000                    

Total Revenues 21,132,985               22,663,000               

Expenditures

General Fund 8,114,991                 8,053,000                 

Special Revenue 3,246,000                 3,651,000                 

Internal Services 4,957,137                 4,187,000                 

Water 5,329,045                 4,766,000                 

Sewer 1,062,927                 966,000                    

Business Funds 256,538                    250,000                    

Successory Agency 560,244                    585,000                    

Total Expenditures 23,526,882               22,458,000               

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE

Projected Ending Balances for FY 2014-2015

City Wide

235



RESOLUTION NO. 15-30 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SIERRA MADRE ADOPTING COMMITTED FUNDS FOR 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 WHEREAS, City of Sierra Madre follows Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) for the basis of its financial reporting; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Sierra Madre adopted GASB 54 Statement and Fund 
Balance Policies on May 24, 2011 for which the objective of this Statement is to 
enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance 
classifications that can be more consistently applied; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Statement establishes fund balance classifications that 

comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound 
to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in 
governmental funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the adoption of the Committed Funds can only be done by the 

City Council by resolution or ordinance prior to the end of each fiscal year; 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE DOES RESOLVE AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  Pursuant to Fund Balance and GASB 54 Policies, the Finance 
Director presents to the City Council estimated Committed Funds as described in 
attached Exhibit “B” - “Projected Ending Fund Balance FYE June 30, 2015”.   

 
 SECTION 2. Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 54 the City Council may 
Commit Fund Balance for a specific "ACTION" or "PURPOSE" prior to the end of the 
fiscal year, June 30, 2015. 

 
 SECTION 3. Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 54 the Finance Director will 
finalize the Committed Fund amount upon the completion of the City financial reports 
for fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of June 2015. 
 
ORIGINAL SIGNED 
  
 

John Capoccia, Mayor, 
City of Sierra Madre, California 

236



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 15-30 was adopted at a regular 
meeting of the City Council of the City of Sierra Madre held on this 9th day of June 2015 
by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
 
ORIGINAL SIGNED 

Nancy Shollenberger, City 
Clerk, City of Sierra Madre, 
California 

 
 

237



EXHIBIT "B"

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE

Projected Ending Fund Balance for FYE June 30, 2015

General Fund

Projected Net change in fund balance FY 2014-2015 356,000$          

6,443,787            

Projected Fund Balance, ending (June 30, 2015) 6,799,787         

Committed Reserves:

California Joint Powers Insurance Authority  Retrospective Claims 125,000$    

Integrated Library System 25,000           

Street Resurfacing or Replacement 404,000         

City Hall and Public Safety Building Roof Replacements 160,000         

NPDES Projects 213,500         

City Parking Lot Maintenance 45,000           

Repainting Library 35,000           

1,007,500$       

Assigned Reserves (Projected):

50% of operating revenues - Reserve Policy 4,604,000            

Fund Balance appropriated to reduce the deficit in next fiscal year - Net 

Change FY 2014-2015 356,000                

Unassigned Reserves 832,287                

Projected Fund Balance, ending (June 30, 2015) 6,799,787         

Fund Balances beginning (June 30, 2014)

238


	City Council Meeting Agenda 06-09-2015
	Unapproved City Council Meeting Minutes 05-26-2015
	1a - Approving Certain Demands
	1b - Budget
	1C - Library Facility Condition Assessment Proposal Reject
	Report
	Revised Request for Proposals for a Library Facility Condition Assessment June 2015

	1d - Cancellation of August Meetings
	1e - Household Hazardous Waste Round Up
	HHW1
	HHW2
	HHW3

	1f - Verdugo Fire Communications Service Agreement
	2 - FY 2015-2016 Assessment Districts
	3 - Verizon Wireless CUP
	CUP 14-07 Oak Meadow Rd (Verizon Wireless)
	CC Exhibit Covers
	CC Reso 15-28 -- Oak Meadow Rd Wireless Telecomm
	PC Staff Report w exhibits
	agenda to site pics
	sims to letter
	exhibit j
	eme
	end to anne


	4 - Emergency Horn
	5 - Budget Reduction Alternatives
	budget report
	RESOLUTION NO 15-29 Midyear 2014-15
	EXHIBIT A - Reso 15-29
	RESOLUTION NO 15-30 GASB 54
	EXHIBIT B -Reso 15-30




